

Ogden Preparatory Academy

Minutes

OPA Board of Directors Meeting

Date and Time

Tuesday July 28, 2020 at 4:30 PM

Location

1435 Lincoln Avenue, Ogden UT 84404 Library

VISION: Ogden Preparatory Academy's vision is to create a positive, nurturing environment for students to grow and learn as they develop the skills necessary to become tomorrow's leaders. Through high academic expectations and experiences, bilingual exposure, leadership roles and commitment to community, OPA students will gain confidence and a sense of self worth that will prepare them to face the challenges in a competitive world.

Directors Present

M. Ward, N. Bowsher, S. Mejeur, S. Zwygart, T. D'Hulst (remote), W. Davis

Directors Absent

Nono

Ex Officio Members Present A. Perez, D. Deem, K. Kennington, S. Mathers

Non Voting Members Present

A. Perez, D. Deem, K. Kennington, S. Mathers

Guests Present

Elizabeth Callison, S. Adams, S. Wright, T. Young

I. Opening Items

A. Record Attendance and Guests

B. Call the Meeting to Order

W. Davis called a meeting of the board of directors of Ogden Preparatory Academy to order on Tuesday Jul 28, 2020 at 4:35 PM.

C. Approve Minutes

S. Zwygart made a motion to approve the minutes from OPA Board Meeting on 06-17-20. M. Ward seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

II. Public Comment

A. Opportunity for Public Comment

Multiple teachers and parents were in attendance. No one chose to comment prior to Board discussion.

III. School Update

A. School Reopening Plan

Stephanie Mathers reviewed the plan presented to the Board based on the USBE required school reopening plan.

The plan includes specifics regarding multiple aspects of reopening school.

The State requirement left the school schedule up individual districts/LEAs.

Bill Davis reviewed the process for consideration of the Administration and Board subcommittee.

During discussions the needs of teachers, students and families were considered. We are a safe haven for many students.

UEA suggested that there be a delayed start to school. A delayed start could give us more time to prepare teachers and prepare for remote learning. There are many factors that would need to be considered such as teacher contracts, school days and hours requirements.

We will continue discussion with the assumption that we will open on time. Reopening Schedule:

- Approximately 30% of families chose to begin learning online. This allows for increased physical distancing for those attending in person.
- Molly Ward estimates that 25% of families who chose staggered attendance would move to online based on sibling choice.
- Proposed schedule:

- Elementary: 30% students online; 70% in person daily
- Junior High: 30% students online; 70% in person Staggered schedule through October 2.
- Board Members input:
 - Tyler D'Hulst started indecisive; his children are currently set to go in person.
 Staggered needs to be united by family.
 - Nick Bowsher was in favor for reopening, but has reconsidered. He is concerned about an OPA community member becoming infected and dying.
 Would be more comfortable with 30% in person and 70% online based on need. He commended OPA staff for their work during the Spring closure. He is confident that teachers can support the online option. Students cannot be prevented from physical contact.
 - Sara Mejeur has been indecisive. Parents can choose in person and switch to online if needed. Concerned about distancing capabilities. Students need consistency. Would like to see something that is sustainable.
 - Stefanie Zwygart will be sending her children daily. Many essential workers need to have school or daycare. School is preferable. She is concerned about the virus and keeping people safe. Keep groups small to increase contact tracing. Elementary teachers have reported that they can put 6 feet between students for 15 students, so 18 is reasonable. At the Junior High it is more difficult to contact trace and contain quarantine needs. Is in support of a staggered schedule at the Junior High. Concerned about families who don't have child care.
 - Bill Davis has had conflicting thoughts. He was in support of having the 70% coming to school daily. Then supported the staggered schedule at the Junior High. Then thought K-9 staggered would be best. Now he isn't sure that is the best at this point. He is now supporting the proposed schedule. We should support online agenda regardless of cost.
 - Molly Ward is concerned about families whose children will be at home alone, and/or the students can't get here to get their food. Molly supports the 5 days/week at the Junior High. Molly believes the families who selected staggered may go to online, thus reducing the numbers of in person students even more. Staggered teaching is not easy. We will work to make it better; however, it will not be easy. We need to be careful with cleaning.

Online Platform:

Teryl discussed the online platform. Feedback from teachers indicates that teaching in person and online. We are working on getting an online platform. Anyone requesting an online education, will be placed on an online platform for the 1st semester. Teachers will be asked to contact the students to some level to include them in the classroom. Teachers would be teaching any in-person students in guarantine remotely.

Stephanie Mathers explained that at the Junior High the online students would be in an online platform. Student in person would be taught by teachers whether staggered or in quarantine.

It was asked if we could have teachers move classrooms in the JH instead of the students. We aren't sure how that would be scheduled.

Remote only is the safest; however, we feel a staggered schedule is a good compromise.

Bill Davis encouraged feedback from the community on how the plan is going. This is a 6week plan, and will be reassessed along the way.

We expect we will lose students regardless of our choice. We need to make it safe for our students and staff.

American Pediatrics Society: The risk to children from the virus is less than the risks of the effects from not having school.

The risk seems to be greatest in family groups where masks aren't worn. Public Comment:

- Steven Davis, Elementary PE teacher: his children are in OSD and will be doing online school. He knows our students need to be here. If students are going outside, we may need additional supplies for outside activities. He can do intramurals outside.
- Janet Scalise, Elementary Kindergarten teacher: a couple considerations with kindergarteners. Has scheduled testing, so delayed start will be an issue. The Kinder classrooms are small, so social distancing is difficult. Kindergarten had mixed results for family engagement in the Spring. Students had difficulty with remote learning. The majority of the time was spent training parents on programs. Need a plan for how to help parents support their students.
- Cami Parry, Math specialist/coach: Children need to be kids and to be safe. She doesn't want the kids to be traumatized more by coming back and not being safe. Educators being scared will increase student trauma. She thinks students need to come back.
- Darby Evans, JH Special Education Coordinator: her classroom is very small. She can only physical distance 4 students in her class. There is fear. Her husband is a high school teacher. She is caring for elderly parents. It is a risk to the teachers and their families. Would prefer the online, but would be able to support the staggered even though it is scary. Second wave in other countries is linked to going back to school.
- Joshua Hoopes, ELA teacher: husband works at treatment center, so he has to consider what his return will do to his husband's student. He has brought in information on child care assistance offerings. Is a proponent of online or staggered start. If he can't come to school, his department would have to pick up the slack of his absence. He is terrified to come back. He has the option to go to a more secure facility if necessary.

- Camie Walker, 5th grade teacher: trained in many schools, OPA is unique. What keeps her here: diversity, equity, Spanish, Summer lunch quality, Teryl is supportive, Administration is accessible. We have a community. Never had so much support at any other school. She loves the parents and students. She is scared of losing our community. Faculty is scared, the kids are scared. Daughter has COVID, but will be fine. Emotional relationships are the most important. Small groups will be helpful. Other schools are recruiting our students. We can use this sense of community to build a stronger school. We have to be strategic. We can do this safely. We have to smaller classes and systems in place. We need online systems in place. We can build relationships online. We have to focus on both elements to maintain the community. We can't focus on academics, we have to focus on relationships. Need to make sure supports are in place. No upstairs bathroom for teachers at Elementary. No specials = no prep. Be proactive with plans in place. We are getting there. Thanked the Board for being honest and open and helpful and giving her hope. We need to social/emotional teach. Academics will come.
- Chantel Stapely, parent: 1 child thrived, and 1 did not. Both good student normally. Online doesn't work for everyone. She doesn't care if it is reduced, but the students need in person teaching. She is cautious. She is concerned about what it will look like when we come back. How will it be handled with students who don't care.
- Natalie Goeckeritz, parent (OPA employee): Online was not good, because she wasn't motivated. Her child needs in person. Beneficial to do staggered days for JH. Need a balance of staggered and in person to support all students.
- Sarah Gonzales, ELA teacher: thinks our concern is if OPA will survive financially. State representative has hope in OPA. We need to compromise. Staggered learning is good for JH. She has no experience with Elementary, so she is not speaking for them. She understands that child care is an issue. She doesn't think remote or daily is the answer.
- Jessica Howell, parent: works for weber health department. has 5 children. online was inconsistent. As a parent, it was very difficult to navigate the system. Should have a meeting with the online parents to help them understand the expectations and how to navigate the issues. Has diverse children. Staggered will work for JH. Elementary needs to be in class. Expectations for online is essential. Need long term objective and what the wiggle room is, so parents can navigate. Has lots of materials at the health department to help navigate the after affects of someone testing positive. Coming back to school can be done safely.
- Tasha Gonce, 6th grade teacher: understands that we need to be safe.
 Understands that teachers and students are human. Is it OK for students to be confined to a class all day. Need to consider their ability to move throughout the day. What does the teacher schedule look like, when do they get breaks? Kids may now know what coming back looks like. We need to make sure we think about mental health and not just physical safety.

Public Comment:

- Steven Davis, Elementary PE teacher: his children are in OSD and will be doing online school. He knows our students need to be here. If students are going outside, we may need additional supplies for outside activities. He can do intramurals outside.
- Janet Scalise, Elementary Kindergarten teacher: a couple considerations with kindergarteners. Has scheduled testing, so delayed start will be an issue. The Kinder classrooms are small, so social distancing is difficult. Kindergarten had mixed results for family engagement in the Spring. Students had difficulty with remote learning. The majority of the time was spent training parents on programs. Need a plan for how to help parents support their students.
- Cami Parry, Math specialist/coach: Children need to be kids and to be safe. She doesn't want the kids to be traumatized more by coming back and not being safe. Educators being scared will increase student trauma. She thinks students need to come back.
- Darby Evans, JH Special Education Coordinator: her classroom is very small. She can only physical distance 4 students in her class. There is fear. Her husband is a high school teacher. She is caring for elderly parents. It is a risk to the teachers and their families. Would prefer the online, but would be able to support the staggered even though it is scary. Second wave in other countries is linked to going back to school.
- Joshua Hoopes, ELA teacher: husband works at treatment center, so he has to consider what his return will do to his husband's student. He has brought in information on child care assistance offerings. Is a proponent of online or staggered start. If he can't come to school, his department would have to pick up the slack of his absence. He is terrified to come back. He has the option to go to a more secure facility if necessary.
- Camie Walker, 5th grade teacher: trained in many schools, OPA is unique. What keeps her here: diversity, equity, Spanish, Summer lunch quality, Teryl is supportive, Administration is accessible. We have a community. Never had so much support at any other school. She loves the parents and students. She is scared of losing our community. Faculty is scared, the kids are scared. Daughter has COVID, but will be fine. Emotional relationships are the most important. Small groups will be helpful. Other schools are recruiting our students. We can use this sense of community to build a stronger school. We have to be strategic. We can do this safely. We have to smaller classes and systems in place. We need online systems in place. We can build relationships online. We have to focus on both elements to maintain the community. We can't focus on academics, we have to focus on relationships. Need to make sure supports are in place. No upstairs bathroom for teachers at Elementary. No specials = no prep. Be proactive with plans in place. We are getting there. Thanked the Board for being honest and open and helpful and giving her hope. We need to social/emotional teach. Academics will come.

- Chantel Stapely, parent: 1 child thrived, and 1 did not. Both good student normally. Online doesn't work for everyone. She doesn't care if it is reduced, but the students need in person teaching. She is cautious. She is concerned about what it will look like when we come back. How will it be handled with students who don't care.
- Natalie Goeckeritz, parent (OPA employee): Online was not good, because she wasn't motivated. Her child needs in person. Beneficial to do staggered days for JH. Need a balance of staggered and in person to support all students.
- Sarah Gonzales, ELA teacher: thinks our concern is if OPA will survive financially. State representative has hope in OPA. We need to compromise. Staggered learning is good for JH. She has no experience with Elementary, so she is not speaking for them. She understands that child care is an issue. She doesn't think remote or daily is the answer.
- Jessica Howell, parent: works for weber health department. has 5 children. online was inconsistent. As a parent, it was very difficult to navigate the system. Should have a meeting with the online parents to help them understand the expectations and how to navigate the issues. Has diverse children. Staggered will work for JH. Elementary needs to be in class. Expectations for online is essential. Need long term objective and what the wiggle room is, so parents can navigate. Has lots of materials at the health department to help navigate the after affects of someone testing positive. Coming back to school can be done safely.
- Tasha Gonce, 6th grade teacher: understands that we need to be safe.
 Understands that teachers and students are human. Is it OK for students to be confined to a class all day. Need to consider their ability to move throughout the day. What does the teacher schedule look like, when do they get breaks? Kids may now know what coming back looks like. We need to make sure we think about mental health and not just physical safety.

Bill trusts that plans will be put in place to address concerns and balance the needs. We know that at home options need to be quality for the staggered to work. The success in the spring was various depending on class, teacher, and parent involvement. We have put requirements into place to manage the classes blended learning.

May need to consider using classrooms at the junior high for elementary. Need more detail worked out.

Need to go back to parents and present plan. Encourage online learning where possible. Need to be prepared to discipline students who are unwilling to comply with the necessary precautions.

S. Zwygart made a motion to approve the school reopening plan as stated in the document. The Board requires an implementation plan prior to August 1, and will reevaluation prior to October 1.

S. Mejeur seconded the motion.

Nick abstained.

Tyler stepped away momentarily.

The board **VOTED** to approve the motion.

Most community attendees left.

B. Utah Parent Center Annual Agreement

Third party contract. They lost one school from the cohort, so our cost increased.

S. Zwygart made a motion to approve the \$3,328 Utah Parent Center Agreement.

N. Bowsher seconded the motion.

Did we use the program last year? Yes, they did some training and participated in IEPs. Worked with some parents individually.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

C. AVID Officer Training

Stephanie Mathers discussed the AVID officer training with Board to elicit concerns and comments if needed.

No Board objection to numbers below 10.

D. Quarantine Requirements for employees leaving the state or country.

Discussed leaving the state or the country. Development committee will determine a proposal for next board meeting.

IV. Finance

A. Go Guardian Contract Approval

N. Bowsher made a motion to approve the suite renewal for \$9,114.30.

S. Zwygart seconded the motion.

Drew reviewed Go Guardian and how we use them for monitoring content. He reviewed proposed additions to what we have used in the past including Fleet, Video Conferencing, etc.

Covers every computer. If the price increases in future years, we can reduce our package if necessary.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

B. Carbon monoxide detector installation

CO detectors are required to be installed and linked to current fire system. Fire marshal has found us non compliant and has required it to be installed.

Board recommends we wait a year as long as we aren't fined. Andrew will get more information from the fire marshal. Talk to Firetrol and see what negotiations can be made. Will revisit in August. Board is concerned about liability with current knowledge. Vendors are willing to work nights and weekends.

C. Crime Insurance

N. Bowsher made a motion to employee theft coverage of \$1,951 to cover all employees.

S. Mejeur seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

D. Internet circuit upgrade

M. Ward made a motion to approve the redundant fiber circuit for a total of \$4,179.50 with the monthly charge of \$130.

N. Bowsher seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

E. Medical Insurance Adoption and School contribution update

N. Bowsher made a motion to approve the contribution increase for E+C to \$650, and the adoption of Blue Cross/Blue Shield and TDA plans.

S. Mejeur seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

F. Kitchen Equipment Grant

N. Bowsher made a motion to purchase of kitchen equipment according to the grant award.

S. Mejeur seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

G. Grant for Wi-Fi upgrade

N. Bowsher made a motion to approve the upgrade to the wi-fi6 access points with Meraki access points for a total of \$87,102.74.

S. Zwygart seconded the motion.

Received a grant to upgrade to wi-fi6. Went with service provider to match the E-rate approvals. Unable to go with Ubiquity in the timeframe due to lack of product. Reimbursement grant.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

H. GEERs funding and CARES funding adjustments

N. Bowsher made a motion to approve Cares and Geer funding plan.

S. Mejeur seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

I. Cleaning and Sanitization Supply Ordering

V. Closing Items

A. Adjourn Meeting

There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made, seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 6:50 PM.

Respectfully Submitted,

W. Davis